
9 June 2015

NOTICE OF MEETING

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
will meet on

Wednesday, 17 June 2015
beginning at

11:30 am
in the

Bursledon Windmill, Windmill Lane, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8BG

TO: Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs Sollitt
County Councillors Kyrle and Lyon

Tim Kelly Hampshire Cultural Trust
Jean Roberts-Jones One Community
Guy Riddoch Area Co-ordinator

Staff Contact: Jack Grounds, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 
8026; Email: jack.grounds@eastleigh.gov.uk 

RICHARD WARD
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

_____________________________________________________________________

AGENDA

1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting    (Pages 1 - 4)

2. Apologies    

3. Curator's Report    (Pages 5 - 18)

4. Finance Report    (Pages 19 - 22)

5. Annual Small Bodies Return    (Pages 23 - 28)

6. Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation Update    (Pages 29 - 32)

7. Future JMA Partnership Funding Agreement Verbal Update    

8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting    

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 28 January 2015  (10:00 am – 11:15 am)

The meeting was held at the Civic Offices, Eastleigh Borough Council

PRESENT:

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Bicknell and Irish

Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors  

Annabel Cook - Hampshire Arts and Museums Service
Tim Kelly - Hampshire Arts and Museums Service
Jean Roberts-Jones - One Community
Guy Riddoch - Area Co-ordinator
 

Apologies for absence were received from  

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2014 be 
approved a correct record. 

2. CURATOR'S REPORT

Annabel Cook reported that Erica Munro had joined Hampshire Cultural 
Trust (HCT) as the South East Area Curator in place of Tom de Wit and had 
come with excellent exhibition experience with two years as the Museum 
Officer at Gosport Discovery Centre and four years as part of the Hampshire 
Exhibitions team. 

It was also reported that in October and December 2014, the Museum’s 
main emphasis had been on delivering the 1914 Big Theme and 
consolidating the relationship between HCT and One Community. 
Communications with One Community had shown improvement and regular 
contact had been made between the Curator and One Community staff and 
Museum volunteers. In December 2014, the Curator arranged a visit by the 
Hampshire Collections team to undertake the cleaning of the displays. The 
Committee were advised that HCT had started to look at the whole Museum 
space in order to maximise resources for the Museum’s exhibitions. 

It was reported that visitor figures to the Museum had been down in 
December 2014 on the previous year but this had been due to the 
importance of the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition; and the fact that the Museum 
needed to be closed both before and after the exhibition in order to facilitate 
it. This reflected a widespread trend although Eastleigh Museum had 

1

Agenda Item 1



performed well in comparison to other Trust community museums in 
Hampshire. 

Throughout October and November 2014, students at Wildern School 
participated in the Eastlegih ENtrenchED project and met weekly to 
complete their Silver Arts Award portfolio. The ENtrenchED project enabled 
students to look in detail at the First World War and particularly the effect of 
the War on the local area. 

The Committee were informed that the Museum’s focus for 2015 would be 
Dinosaurs. This focus would feature through museums across Hampshire. It 
was reported that this theme fitted with the National Curriculum’s focus on 
pre-history for Key Stages 1 and 2; while in-keeping with the theme of “our 
town in the past”. 

It was also highlighted that Eastleigh Museum had received new branding 
and that social media had been used to great effect in the publicity for the 
Soldiers’ Journey exhibition. Guy Riddoch advised that all social media done 
through Eastleigh Borough Council would be published via Corporate 
Communications. 

Jean Roberts-Jones reported that the appointment of Erica Munro was 
working very well and continued with HCTs engaging and friendly approach. 
Guy Riddoch also advised that the date for the 2015 Christmas Lights 
switch-on for Eastleigh town centre would be the 21 November 2015. 

The Committee discussed a range of ideas for expanding the role of the 
Museum within the Christmas Lights Switch On.

It was AGREED that the Curator’s Report be noted. 

3. FINANCE REPORT

Tim Kelly reported that following the previous meeting in September 2014, 
the budget was presented in a different way. He advised that greater 
sources of income were required and that suggestions such as philanthropy 
had been made. The Committee were advised of the recent Heritage Lottery 
Funded programme, Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the Hampshire 
Solent Area. Tim highlighted that the project would create opportunities for 
HCT and other museums in the area to develop their funding networks and 
fundraising skills. This would then hopefully lead to the employment of 
people with the appropriate experience which would directly benefit the 
running of Eastleigh Museum. The Committee were also advised the use of 
gift aid had been used on entrance fees to the museum but this could not be 
extended to any classes and workshops because there were different 
models for the use of gift aid. 

Jean Robert-Jones advised that visitors to Eastleigh Museum should be 
made aware of the difference between the functions of Hampshire County 
Council and those of HCT. She highlighted that by demonstrating the 

2



different functions of the two organisations, this may lead to an increase in 
donations and potentially repeat visitors. 

It was AGREED that Finance Report be noted. 

4. DRAFT 2015/16 VENUE PLAN

Annabel Cook advised the Committee that the Draft Venue Plan set out the 
activities that HCT hoped would take place in 2015/16. The intention was to 
increase visitor numbers to the Museum and to cater public programmes to 
those potential visitors. The theme for 2015/16 would be Dinosaurs and 
collections and programmes would be tailored in order to reflect this theme. 
The Committee were also advised that the HCT were hoping to see repeat 
visitors as well as an increase in new visitors. 

5. PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE AGREEMENT - HEADS OF TERMS

Tim Kelly advised that the Heads of Terms for Partnership Funding 
Agreement had been drafted by legal officers at Hampshire County Council. 
It was highlighted that as Hampshire County Council had transferred its arts, 
museum and heritage services to HCT, the function of the Committee 
remained the same with regard to the recommended statutory powers. 

6. CULTURAL CONVERSATIONS - HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST 
UPDATE

Tim Kelly gave a brief statement on behalf of Janet Owen. He advised the 
Committee that in March and April 2015, HCT would hold Cultural 
Conversations. Local stakeholders would be invited to the Trust’s venues 
and given the opportunity to share views and thoughts regarding plans over 
the next ten years. HCT would use this feedback in order to shape its 
programme over this period. 

It was reported that between the 9 March and 30 April 2015, a small, 
evening exhibition would take place in each venue and ideas would be 
brought together over a glass of wine. 

7. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED

That the next meeting of the Committee take place on 17 June 2015 at 
11:30 am at Eastleigh House. 

3



M5502

4



1

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 17 JUNE 2015
Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT
Author: Erica Munro

Purpose:

1.  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum

1.1 Museum Service Delivery
This period saw a lot of behind-the-scenes work at Hampshire Cultural Trust which has 
been busy establishing new internal systems and teams to oversee communications, 
finance and HR. Eastleigh Museum has taken part in the county-wide Culture 
Conversation, and Hampshire Cultural Trust has been engaging in strategic planning work 
throughout the region. A display of text panels and a specially-commissioned film in the 
Temporary Exhibition Gallery has informed visitors of the Trust and its ambitions, and a 
visitor survey and ‘Culture Conversation’ event has been gathering their feedback.

The Curator has been busy programming and preparing forthcoming events and 
exhibitions in partnership with local groups. Following early conversations with One 
Community, the programming direction at Eastleigh chiefly favours local topics and 
individuals. Over the spring/summer, an exhibition on local volunteers was produced and 
an exhibition on the Eastleigh Mela is now in production. The Curator has been meeting 
with the Asian Welfare and Cultural Association of Eastleigh to devise and develop this so 
that it coincides with the 10th Eastleigh Mela itself in 2015.

Plans are underway, following the annual clean of the displays by the Collections Team, to 
develop a training and review system which would allow museum volunteers to contribute 
to the upkeep of the open displays. 

Mr and Mrs Brown’s front room, one of the open displays at Eastleigh Museum

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum
Covering period January to May 2015

5

Agenda Item 3



2

We are optimistic that a system can be developed which would increase and enhance the 
skills of volunteers and allow them to work closer with the museum objects they steward, 
and at the same time ensure that more regular cleaning takes place. Both of these 
outcomes would significantly benefit the museum.

The Curator also plans to improve museum signage by installing an orientation sign 
highlighting the exhibition gallery, and replacing the signage around Mr and Mrs Brown. 
Space may also be created in the café/shop if the Hampshire Hidden Treasures case can 
be replaced by a smaller, more suitable showcase. An update on these plans will be in the 
next report.

1.2 Visitor Figures

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals

2009 – 
2010 

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213

2010 –
2011

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041

2011 –
2012

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987

2012 –
2013

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 1236 14,252

2013 –
2014

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514

2014 – 
2015 1926 3052 1561 1961 1465 1501 1470 1382 850 905 1188 1078 18,339

2015-
2016 1655 1435

The visitor figures show a general trend of being lower than last year. Despite the huge 
success of the LEGO Lost World Zoo exhibition in May 2014, figures did not increase 
significantly over the summer. We are confident that the local interest in Celebrate 
Volunteers, the wider coverage of the forthcoming Eastleigh’s Mela exhibition and the 
popular topic of the Drawn to Dinosaurs exhibition in October should see numbers 
increase again. HCT are focussing on marketing at community museums, and we are that 
improving this will increase awareness of our temporary exhibitions. The team are also in 
discussion with One Community over ways to make the museum more visible in terms of 
events, marketing, activity in the community and the physical building itself.

6



3

2.  Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events

2.1 Soldiers Journey
11 October 2014 to 11 January 2015
The Soldier’s Journey exhibition that was part of Hampshire’s county-wide 
commemorations of the First World War in nine venues across the county continued until 
January 2015. Eastleigh’s exhibition examined Eastleigh’s unique contribution through the 
railways and through the huge clearing hospital that was set up in town, as well as 
Hampshire’s significant role in the First World War. The exhibition appealed to all ages, 
with objects, illustrations, photographs, games and a specially commissioned film about 
the impact of the First World War in Hampshire.

Soldiers’ Journey at Eastleigh Museum, Oct 2014 – Jan 2015

2.2 Horizon 20:20
23 January to 22 March 2015
Fifty pupils from four Education Centres in Hampshire worked with a variety of professional 
artists over the Autumn term 2014. The Horizon 20:20 exhibition was a collection of their 
original artwork, including print, sculpture, textiles and willow work. The young people were 
from around Eastleigh, Farnborough, Andover and the New Forest, aged between 13 –16. 
This exhibition was organised by the Youth Arts Officer for Hampshire Cultural Trust, and 
the exhibition toured to a number of venues after opening in Eastleigh. The exhibition was 
a fitting tribute to the project which had engaged so many young people so successfully.  

Pat Cole, Deputy Head Teacher, Bridge Education Centre, Eastleigh has said of the 
project: 

“All of the artists involved developed a good rapport with the young people and 
this helped our pupils to develop their own social skills. Our young people, 
who often have little opportunity to take part in cultural experiences, were 
enthusiastic about the diversity of the skills they were able to learn. The 
finished works are delightful and it was heart-warming to see the pride that the 
pupils have in both their own pieces of work and those of others.”

7



4

Young people preparing artwork for the Horizon 20:20 exhibition at Eastleigh Museum

2.3 Found In The Fields
28 March to 16 May 2015
Found In The Fields was an exhibition of 16 hand-drawn lithographs and a number of 
black and white linocuts by artist Carry Akroyd, incorporating texts taken from poems by 
John Clare. The artworks were designed to bring the 19th century poet’s words into the 
contemporary landscape. The artist selected extracts of various lengths from poems of her 
choice and put together a set of works that reflected the responses to nature of both the 
poet 200 years ago and the modern day artist. 

One of the lithographs from Carry Akroyd’s exhibition, Found in the Fields

8



5

2.4 Celebrate Volunteers
23 May to 27 June 2015
One Community and Hampshire Cultural Trust worked together to produce an exhibition 
which put the spotlight on eight local voluntary groups and organisations active in the 
Eastleigh area. Timed to coincide with National Volunteers Week (1-7 June), Celebrate 
Volunteers  used text and images to share with visitors the work of these organisations 
and celebrate the difference that volunteers can make to people’s lives. One Community 
co-ordinated the organisations and collated their text and photographs, as well as leading 
on the exhibition marketing. HCT devised the exhibition, and designed, produced and 
installed it.  The private view, where the exhibition was officially opened by Mayor Jane 
Welsh, was well attended by many of the organisations and all involved expressed how 
pleased they were with the chance to share their work with a wider audience.  

Representatives of Chameleons Theatre Company with the Mayor at the Private View, 22 May

3.  Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice  

3.1 Caring for collections
The Museum Accreditation Return for Hampshire Cultural Trust was submitted to Arts 
Council England on 30 April 2015 making them formally aware of the changes in 
governance and management resulting from the transition from local authority 
management to Trust status. 

The return included a suite of revised collections management policies and plans for the 
Trust that had been updated in the light of the new partnership with Winchester City 

9



6

Museums and approved by the Board of Trustees prior to their submission. Having these 
policies will ensure that Eastleigh Museum continues to be an Accredited Museum 
benefiting from membership of the national scheme in many ways, including access to a 
greater range of funding opportunities.

Frequent checks were undertaken in the stores at Chilcomb House in Winchester where 
objects relating to the Borough of Eastleigh are kept when they are not on display or 
attending events to ensure that the winter weather was not affecting the environmental 
conditions in which they are kept.

3.2 Promoting access to collections and specialist knowledge and advice
The Collections Team has been devoting most of its time to preparing the 2015 Hampshire 
Big Theme project - Dinofest 2015 – during this period.  The exhibition that is being 
developed for Eastleigh Museum is called Drawn to Dinosaurs because it features the 
work of artist John Sibbick, well known for his reconstructions of prehistoric life. Our 
Curator of Natural Sciences collected the paintings from the artist, who lives on the Isle of 
Wight, and completed the research needed to write the labels for his work, which will also 
include preparatory sketches and models of dinosaurs. 

One of the artworks by John Sibbick from the Drawn to Dinosaurs exhibition

The objects installed in the Hampshire’s Hidden Treasure case for this period continued to 
mark the centenary of the outbreak of the First World War. They were Toby jugs featuring 
leaders from the First World War that were drawn from the County Council’s Decorative 
Arts Collection. This type of display serves to illustrate the diversity of the collections cared 
for by Hampshire County Council and that are available for exhibition at Eastleigh 
Museum.

10



7

           

4.  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement 

4.1 Formal Education Provision

Over the 5 month period January to May 2015, the museum has had 8 school groups 
visiting and the CEL Team has worked with a further 3 as outreach, a total of 311 pupils in 
school groups.  Where sessions are self led the CEL Team still liaise with the school and 
provide resources for them to use. All other sessions are fully planned and led by the CEL 
staff. 

Date School
Key Stage 
& Year 
Group

No. of 
children Type of workshop

12 Jan Fryern Junior KS2 Yr 3 29 Our Town in the Past 
(Outreach in school)

12 Jan Fryern Junior KS2 Yr 3 28 Our Town in the Past 
(Outreach in School)

16 Mar Knightwood Primary KS2 Yr 5 32 Our Town in the Past
16 Mar Knightwood Primary KS2 Yr 5 32 Our Town in the Past

23 Mar Thornden School KS3 Yr 8 11 Project Work on WW1 
(Outreach)

6 May Norwood Primary KS2 Yr 4 30 Our Town in the Past
6 May Cherbourg Primary KS1 Yr 1 29 Our Town in the Past KS1
7 May Nightingale Primary KS1 Yr 3 30 Our Town in the Past
19 May Crescent Primary KS1 Yr R 30 Self-led local study
19 May Crescent Primary KS1 Yr R 30 Self-led local study
19 May Crescent Primary KS1 Yr R 30 Self-led local study

Impact evidence and general feedback is collected from all school sessions, to aid 
evaluation and service planning. All feedback was very positive.  For example, the teacher 
from Cherbourg Primary emailed the CELO after the workshop to say:

“Thank you so much for the workshops at the museum this afternoon. I know 
the children really enjoyed themselves and learned such a lot”.

The Head of Drama at Thornden School wrote:
“Thank you SO much for a great presentation which stimulated some excellent 
drama.” 

For this project the CELO ran a workshop with real WW1 local artefacts which the students 
then produced a piece of drama about.

The workshops on 6 & 7 May were part of a partnership project the museum is 
undertaking with 3 local primary schools and Wet Picnic Theatre Company. The children 
are researching the impact on the area of the coming of the railway and putting their 
findings into a piece of theatre. They are also producing work to display in the museum. 
Museum volunteer Danny Molloy has helped extensively with this project and the CELO 
devised a new railway version of the Our Town in the Past workshop (which will now be 
offered to other schools). 

11



8

Our Town in the Past workshops, 6 and 7 May 2015

12



9

4.2 Community Engagement and Learning

In line with the Venue Plan aim of widening participation, a programme of activities for a 
range of audiences was offered over the 5 month period.  202 people took part in the led 
activities.  A further 320 enjoyed activities at the outdoor event on 18 April. The CEL 
Team also provides self-led drop-in activities for children for the school holidays. The 
figures below are for led activities and do not include participants in the self-led offer. 

 Activity/Event Target Audience Date No. of
participants

Old & New Market Day Drop-in Older people 8 Jan 17

Get More Out of Galleries 
workshop

Adults with Learning 
Differences 28 Jan 11

Hands-on Half Term museum 
‘ologies’ workshop Families 19 Feb 76

Reminiscence Workshop (Spring 
Cleaning)

Older People in a care 
setting (outreach at Fernhill 
Court)

3 March 13

Fun in the Fields art and science 
holiday workshop linked to 
exhibition

Families 9 April 31

Stall at Eastleigh St George's 
Day. CELO provided specimens 
and activity

Families and general public 18 April 320

Get More Out of Galleries 
workshop

Adults with Learning 
Differences 22 April 10

Museum May-kers art and craft 
holiday workshop Families 28 May 44

The highlight of the programme was the Get More Out of Galleries course for adults with 
learning difficulties. A group who attend a skills for life course at Southampton City College 
have been working with the CELO at Eastleigh Museum and Westbury Manor Museum to 
gain confidence in museum and gallery visits. At Eastleigh they had one session in the 
Horizon 20:20 exhibition and one in the Found in the Fields exhibition, each session 
highlighting a different kind of exhibition and giving the participants different ideas for how 
to access an exhibition, critique it, respond to it and gain new skills or knowledge from it. 
Each time they also did a bit of linked art work as a response to the exhibition. The 
workshops have been very successful in achieving their aims. Their group leader sent 
some excellent feedback:

13



10

“Thank you for the sessions you 
have organised and run for my 
group over the past few 
months...Making their own books 
was a very popular activity and 
they are all proud of the prints 
they made with you at Eastleigh 
museum. The finished results 
were very individual. I enjoyed 
seeing the amount of fun they had 
making them and also their 
fascination looking at the insects 
on the laptop through the 
microscope. There was a lot of 
laughter and some really lovely 
interactions between the students 
and you. I would just like to 
highlight the first session at 
Eastleigh Museum and the questions 
you gave the group to help them to 
look at the pictures in the exhibition 
in new and different ways as 
particularly successful. Using 
questions such as 'find a piece of 
art that makes you smile and say 
why' & 'find something you think 
was difficult to make and say why' 
have enriched visits to a variety of 
places since our session with you. 
The questions you gave varied 
from simple to challenging and 
proved really effective. "Find a 
piece of art that makes you go 
WOW and say why" is my new 
favourite question to ask my 
students. I have used it with this 
and other groups and it has 
resulted in interesting, surprising 
and sometimes touching answers. 
Even when students are unable to 
express a 'why' the question leads 
them to something that clearly 
resonates with them in a positive way.”

The school holiday Thursday family workshops continue to be popular, as does the 
‘Museums for Seniors’ strand where reminiscence workshops using museum artefacts as 
the stimulus are taken into the community. There are further bookings for these Hampshire 
Futures funded sessions coming up this term.

14



11

Fun in the Fields art & science family workshop, 9 April 

Museum May-kers art & craft workshop, led by museum volunteers, 28 May

15



12

5.  Marketing and Management

5.1 Printed material
In May 2015 a South East area What's On leaflet, with a print run of 12,500 was produced. 
This covered the period from June to September and is being professionally distributed 
throughout the region to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. Exhibition marketing materials were 
produced locally. After assessing the success of posters and flyers, the local team have 
decided to primarily use 
flyers (which are distributed 
to schools, libraries and at 
public events) to market 
events and exhibitions with 
many fewer posters 
produced. HCT are keen to 
review the marketing at 
community venues and this 
process has begun at a 
regional level.
 
5.2 Online marketing
Events at Eastleigh 
Museum feature on a monthly basis via the Hampshire County Council cultural e-
newsletter, Showcase. Showcase is now reaching over 30,000 subscribers and regularly 
features both an exhibition and an object of the month as well as signposting recipients to 
events in the their local area. The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, recently rebranded as 
HCT, is sent to sign ups on a new database created for use by Hampshire Cultural Trust. 
The first issue was sent out on 5 May to 2,500 people.
 
5.3 Research
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at key sites over two three-monthly 
periods - January to March and June to August. These are profiled using Mosaic software 
and provide ongoing information on which groups of people are using and not using our 
services and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area. This feeds into the 
service and marketing planning processes. Postcodes collected during the January to 
March period are in the process of being profiled.

5.4 Social Media
The Facebook page and Twitter feed set up to promote exhibitions and events at HCC 
Museums Service have now been rebranded as Hampshire Cultural Trust. Facebook now 
has nearly 2,000 “likes” and Twitter over 3,000 followers. Content has been scheduled in 
until June and planning is taking place for the next few months.

5.5 The Ambassador Scheme
Launched at the HCT launch event in March 2015, this central project has created over 40 
Founding Ambassadors who have pledged their support to the Trust and donated vital 
funds. Whilst we will offer these Ambassadors one or two special invitations in return for 
their generosity, this income will help support venues across the Trust.

16



13

5.6 The Culture Card
The card is now available and will shortly be on offer in all sites and online. This annual 
pass scheme for all the Trust’s sites includes some partners (Itchen Valley/Portsmouth 
Historic Dockyards) and includes free entry for a family of four to all HCT venues.

HCT’s CEO Janet Owen and Chair of Trustees Alan Lovell launching the Culture Card in April 2015

5.7 DinoFest round up from the Trust marketing team 
One Community staff and volunteers were trained and briefed on Dinofest – the 2015 Big 
Theme which has begun at some locations in the county and opens at Eastleigh Museum 
in October 2015. Marketing instructions were delivered for all public-facing and front of 
house staff and all venues received relevant Dinofest print. The Dinofest website and 
social media sites are up and running with 500 followers on social media sites.  
king/following so far. Press ads have been booked in Daily Echo, Primary Times etc. 
General ads elsewhere (lifts in Basingstoke’s Festival Place, bus sides, poster sites in 
Southampton etc). Leaflets are also being distributed (38,000 around the county).

Erica Munro
June 2015

17



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

16 JUNE 2015

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15 & 2015/16

Introduction
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Eastleigh Museum is 
shared between the partner authorities. 

This report provides an update on the 2015/16 budget.  Please note that the 2014/15 actuals span the periods when venues were run by HCC (April – 
Oct) and Hampshire Cultural Trust (Nov to Mar).

Description of  2015/16 Budget
The 2015/16 budget for Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows: 

1. Venue Management - salaries
Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs.

2. Venue Management - costs
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs during 
11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be higher 
as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick up any such 
overspend in years where more work needs to be done.

3. Public Programmes (exhibitions)
This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for 
local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions.

4. Collections 
This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Eastleigh, organised within the disciplines of 
Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to store, manage and provide public access to 
these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of exhibitions, displays and activities.

5. Area Learning and Engagement 
The Community Engagement and Learning team are responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions 
for young people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both within the 
museum and beyond in to the community.

19

A
genda Item

 4



6. Business Development
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to free 
editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding from external 
sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate.

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plan, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how Eastleigh 
Museum directly benefits. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. They also include more accurate 
projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where applicable). 

The Trust strategy takes a more business-focused approach.  Key aims include:

a) The centrally provided exhibition programmes will be increasingly cost-effective and commercial with the objective of increasing visitors and 
income. Stronger connections will be made between the community museum and flagship venue programmes: for example, Hampshire’s Big 
Theme 2014 (1914 – Commemorating World War 1); Lego Lost Worlds Zoo

b) Expenditure in marketing (both print-based and digital) will increase in support of these programmes and their income/ visitor targets
c) Expenditure in fundraising will increase in support of meeting revenue external investment targets
d) Expenditure in business development expertise will be maintained and strengthened to support long-term development plans, revenue and 

capital investment for culture across Hampshire, including Eastleigh
e) Levering additional investment for public programming across all venues, including into Eastleigh. It will be allocated across arts and museums 

public programmes on an annual basis or in relation to specific projects which have secured external investment, with priority given to partners 
demonstrating most strategic commitment.

In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received from 
volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.  

An example of this external benefit is the recently secured Heritage Lottery Funded programme - Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the Hampshire 
Solent Area. This project will create opportunities for the Hampshire Cultural Trust and other Museums in the area to develop their fundraising networks 
and skills. This three-year programme aims to create a culture of philanthropy, and inspire a real step change for both the sector and the philanthropic 
community in the Hampshire Solent area. 

Recommendation
That the 2014/15 actuals and 2015/16 budget update are noted by the committee.

20



Appendix 1

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM Budget Actuals Budget BURSLEDON WINDMILL Budget Actuals Budget
  to 31 Dec   to 31 Dec
EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
 £  £   £ £
Venue Management - salaries 12,124 9,607 9,663 Venue Management - salaries 21,241 22,076 31,301
Venue Management - costs* 19,932 11,667 19,264 Venue Management - costs* 7,562 5,937  
Public Programmes (exhibitions) 21,004 21,004 18,433 Public Programmes (exhibitions) 4,789 4,789 4,608
Collections 42,941 42,941 45,421 Collections 6,611 6,611 11,355
Area Learning and Engagement 17,728 17,728 24,431 Area Learning and Engagement 23,474 23,474 24,431
Business Development 13,843 13,843 22,577 Business Development 13,843 13,843 22,577
Total Expenditure 127,571 116,790 139,789 Total Expenditure 77,519 76,730 94,272
Income 5,848 4,830 6,695 Income 4,098 3,051 6,695
Net Expenditure 121,723 111,960 133,094 Net Expenditure 73,421 73,679 87,577

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE Budget Actuals Budget
  to 31 Dec Proposed
 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
Total Eastleigh Museum 121,723 111,960 133,094
Total Bursledon Windmill 73,421 73,679 87,577
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 195,143 185,639 220,671

INCOME
HCC / HCT combined income 

budgets 

Hampshire 
Cultural 

Trust 
 Budget Actuals Budget 
  to August (indicative) 
 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16
Hampshire County Council / Hampshire 
Cultural Trust 134,743 125,239 160,271
EBC Contribution - Eastleigh Museum 30,000 30,000 30,000
EBC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 27,728 27,728 27,728
BPC Contribution - Bursledon Windmill 2,672 2,672 2,672
TOTAL INCOME 195,143 185,639 220,671

21



* This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost 
based on the average actual costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and 
maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be higher as works need to be carried out 
and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCC will continue to pick up any such overspend in years when 
more work needs to be done).

22



Committee Eastleigh Museum JMC

Date of meeting 17 June 2015

Title of report Annual small bodies return 2014/15

Author Rob Sarfas

Purpose of report: 
To present the annual small bodies return for 2014/15 for approval by the JMC and 
submission to external audit

1. Introduction 

1.1. Eastleigh Museum JMC is required to submit an annual return by 30 June 2015 
summarising its financial activities for the financial year 1 April 2014 to 31 
March 2015.  This return comprises four sections:

 accounting statements

 annual governance statement

 external auditor’s certificate and opinion

 internal auditor’s report  

2. Annual governance statement 

2.1. Members of the JMC are asked to confirm, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, whether they agree with eight statements in respect of the accounting 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

2.2. A copy of the annual governance statement for 2014/15 is attached at 
Appendix B. Committee is requested to consider and approve the annual 
governance statement, so it can be signed by the Chair and the Committee 
Clerk and submitted for audit.

2.3. The hard copy of the return for completion will be brought to the meeting.
2.4. Appendix A contains some notes to aid discussion of the annual governance 

statement, split to reflect the periods before and after transfer to the Hampshire 
Cultural Trust.

3. Accounting statements 2014/15
3.1. The accounting statements provide a high level summary of the 2014/15 

financial activity of Eastleigh Museum JMC and are attached at Appendix C. 

23

Agenda Item 5



3.2. The Committee is requested to approve the accounting statements, so they can 
be signed by the Chair and submitted for audit.

4. External auditor’s certificate and opinion
4.1. BDO LLP are the appointed external auditors for Eastleigh Museum JMC and 

will complete this section of the return following the conclusion of their audit.

5. Internal auditor’s report
5.1. An internal audit of Eastleigh Museum JMC is carried out once every three 

years as part of a risk assessed cyclical programme. Under this programme, 
the last audit was carried out in 2011/12, and an audit is therefore being carried 
out to cover 2014/15.

5.2. Where appropriate, reliance is placed on assurance work carried out on HCC 
corporate systems used by the museum to avoid duplication and additional cost 
to the body. 

5.3. The internal auditor’s report is attached to the hard copy of the annual return.

6. Recommendations
6.1. That the annual governance statement for 2014/15 is agreed by the Committee 

and signed by the Chair and Clerk.
6.2. That the accounting statement for 2014/15 is approved by the Committee and 

signed by the Chair.
6.3. That the internal audit report is noted and any action agreed as appropriate 

(internal audit report to be tabled on the day of the meeting).

24



Appendix A
Eastleigh Museum JMC – Annual Governance Statement

For the period 1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014:

1. The Eastleigh Museum JMC budgets are governed by the financial standing 
orders and procedures of Hampshire County Council (HCC), with accounts 
prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom.

2. HCC’s financial systems and procedures ensure segregation of duties, 
including financial limits of responsibility. 

Fraud and irregularity prevention, detection and investigation is covered by 
HCC’s internal auditors, including the assessment of the effectiveness of 
controls and detection processes.

3. The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

4. A “Notice of Public Rights” is displayed at the museum each year, inviting 
anyone to arrange a time to inspect the accounts between specific dates (20 
working days).

5. The museum is not owned by the Joint Management Committee and therefore 
all associated risks and liabilities arising from the land and built assets remain 
with the owners. The JMC is therefore only responsible for the financial risks 
associated with the running of Eastleigh Museum JMC. 

Funding is provided to cover all costs on an annual basis by Eastleigh Borough 
Council, HCC and income generation. The museum does not therefore carry 
deficits or accrue reserves.

Risk is covered through reporting to the JMC, including the regular reports of 
the Curator.

Eastleigh Museum is staffed day to day by representatives of One Community, 
a partner organisation that provides front of house services.  Other staff, who 
provide professional services to the Museum are currently employed by 
Hampshire County Council.  One Community staff and volunteers operate 
under the procedures, including financial and health and safety, of One 
Community and those of Hampshire County Council operate under the 
procedures, including financial and health and safety, of Hampshire County 
Council.  A partnership agreement lays out the responsibilities of both 
organisations for the running of the Museum.

Budgets and updates are produced for the Joint Management Committee by 
officers from HCC’s Arts & Museums Service. Financial support is provided by 
Hampshire County Council, as is the internal audit service.

6. Eastleigh Museum uses HCC’s financial systems and procedures. 

25



Internal audit of Eastleigh Museum is carried out on a cyclical basis (currently 
once every three years) with reliance placed on assurance work carried out on 
HCC’s corporate systems to avoid duplication and additional costs for the JMC. 
This is considered an appropriate, proportionate and risk based approach to the 
internal audit requirements of the museum.

7. Officers have responded to matters brought to their attention via internal and 
external audits. 

8. The annual financial accounts take into account everything relating to each 
financial year regardless of when the activity took place.

For the period 1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015:

1. The Eastleigh Museum JMC budgets are governed by the financial standing 
orders and procedures of Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT), whose accounts are 
prepared in accordance with the Charity Commission Statement of 
Recommended Practice.

2. HCT’s financial systems and procedures ensure segregation of duties, 
including financial limits of responsibility. 

Fraud and irregularity prevention, detection and investigation is covered by 
Hampshire County Council’s internal auditors, including the assessment of the 
effectiveness of controls and detection processes.

3. The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

4. A “Notice of Public Rights” is displayed at the museum each year, inviting 
anyone to arrange a time to inspect the accounts between specific dates (20 
working days).

5. The museum is not owned by the Joint Management Committee and therefore 
all associated risks and liabilities arising from the land and built assets remain 
with the owners. The JMC is therefore only responsible for the financial risks 
associated with the running of Eastleigh Museum JMC. 

Funding is provided to cover all costs on an annual basis by HCT through 
grants from Eastleigh Borough Council and Hampshire County Council (HCC) 
and income generation. The museum does not therefore carry deficits or 
accrue reserves.

Risk is covered through reporting to the JMC, including the regular reports of 
the Curator.

Eastleigh Museum is staffed day to day by representatives of One Community, 
a partner organisation that provides front of house services.  Other staff, who 
provide professional services to the Museum are currently employed by 
Hampshire Cultural Trust.  One Community staff and volunteers operate under 

26



the procedures, including financial and health and safety, of One Community 
and those of Hampshire Cultural Trust operate under the procedures, including 
financial and health and safety, of Hampshire Cultural Trust.  A partnership 
agreement lays out the responsibilities of both organisations for the running of 
the Museum.

Budgets and updates are produced for the Joint Management Committee by 
officers from HCT. Financial support is provided by Hampshire County Council, 
as is the internal audit service.

6. Eastleigh Museum uses HCT’s financial systems and procedures, which are 
operated through HCC. 

Internal audit of Eastleigh Museum is carried out on a cyclical basis (currently 
once every three years) with reliance placed on assurance work carried out on 
HCC’s corporate systems to avoid duplication and additional costs for the JMC. 
This is considered an appropriate, proportionate and risk based approach to the 
internal audit requirements of the museum.

7. Officers have responded to matters brought to their attention via internal and 
external audits. 

8. The annual financial accounts take into account everything relating to each 
financial year regardless of when the activity took place.

27



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Committee: Eastleigh
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 8th June 2015
Title of Report: Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation
Author: Hannah Ashwell

Purpose:

a) Strategic Planning and the Culture Conversation

Having recently taken responsibility for the operation of over 20 arts and museums 
attractions across the county, including Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
Hampshire Cultural Trust wanted to share with the public our plans for a vibrant culture in 
the Eastleigh area. A ‘Culture Conversation’ roadshow took place in March and April 2015, 
which was an opportunity for Trust staff to meet with residents, businesses and community 
groups to discover their ambitions for the Eastleigh area and how our work should be 
helping them all. 

A series of information panels and a short film were displayed in prominent places at 
Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill throughout March, April and May, and a survey 
invited visitors to share their thoughts and comments.

Hampshire Cultural Trust will launch its Strategic Plan at the first AGM/Core Partner 
meeting on 15th July 2015 which will reflect the ambitions of the Trust for the next five 
years and beyond. Feedback from the roadshow and survey will influence the 
development of the strategic plan.

b) Culture Conversation information panels

Eastleigh and Bursledon

Panel 1: Hampshire Cultural Trust

We are a new independent charity that operates and funds over 20 arts and museums venues across 
Hampshire.

We want to deliver great cultural experiences on your doorstep, with the power to change lives. 

Our vision is to champion world-class culture in Hampshire. 
We exist to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s culture and creative economy. Working in 
partnership with a variety of organisations we help culture support economic regeneration, nurture local 
talent and inspire happiness and fulfilment.

Panel 2: In Eastleigh: Now

Hampshire Cultural Trust runs Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum.

An update on Hampshire Cultural Trust’s strategic planning and the ‘Culture 
Conversation’

29

Agenda Item 6



2

2013/14
Eastleigh
No of Visitors – 23,429
No of exhibitions – 7
No of volunteers – 30
Young people reached – 5360

Panel 3: In Eastleigh: Future Plans

Within 2 years:

We will deliver a more vibrant offer in our venues, creating exciting ‘culture stops’ with:
 Improved café and retail experiences, including free Wi-Fi
 Assortment of arts and history events in both our venues, daytime and evening
 Mini town centre festival events in partnership with local business and culture partners

We will continue to develop our work with vulnerable people from all ages and backgrounds to help provide 
better life chances.

Within 5 years:

We aim to modernise our sites so that Eastleigh residents and visitors get a truly inspirational and memorable 
cultural experience. Options include:

 Developing opportunities for Hampshire makers (food producers  and craftspeople) at 
Bursledon Windmill

 Redevelop Eastleigh Museum in partnership with One Community to create a community 
heritage venue that brings the past to life through displays and interactive digital story-
telling.

Panel 4: Your Views and Support

We are interested in your views and ideas about how we can support your cultural, social and economic 
needs. 

Please complete the short survey provided and you will be entered into our competition to win a fantastic 
prize.

We would love you to get involved in our work so please consider making a pledge to Hampshire Cultural 
Trust.

c) 
Feedback from the Culture Conversation in Eastleigh and Bursledon
The Culture Conversation roadshow was attended by 25 people from the community 
including volunteers, audience members and businesses in the local area.  

d) Next steps

30



3

The new Director of Communications and Development, Jane Baker, is now in post and 
will start conversations with the Eastleigh Borough Council team about marketing.

Investigations are taking place into mini festivals and site animating projects which may 
impact various locations around the county.

These initiatives will combine to create a framework for long term cultural development in 
the borough. 

31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	5 Annual Small Bodies Return
	6 Strategic Planning and Culture Conversation Update

